Archaeological Journal.

PUBLISHED UNDER THE DIRECTION OF

THE CENTRAL COMMITTEE

OF

The Archaeological Institute of Great Britain and Freland,

FOR THE ENCOURAGEMENT AND PROSECUTION OF

RESEARCHES INTO THE ARTS AND MONUMENTS

OF

The Early and Middle Ages.

VOLUME XVIII.

LONDON:

PUBLISHED AT THE OFFICE OF THE INSTITUTE, 26, SUFFOLK STREET, PALL MALL EAST.

(DISTRIBUTED GRATUITOUSLY TO SUBSCRIBING MEMBERS.)
TO BE OBTAINED THROUGH ALL BOOKSELLERS.
MDCCCLXI,

THE CENTRAL COMMITTEE of the Archaeological Institute desire that it should be distinctly understood that they are not responsible for any statements or opinions expressed in the Archaeological Journal, the authors of the several memoirs and communications being alone answerable for the same.

CONTENTS.

On Foundations of Early Buildings discovered in Lichfield Cathedral. By the	PAGE
Rev. Professor Willis, F.R.S	1
The Antiquities of Shap, Westmoreland. By the Rev. James Simpson	25
Ancient British Village in Cornwall. By J. T. BLIGHT	. 39
Examples of Mediæval Seals. By W. S. Walford, F.S.A., and Albert	
Way, F.S.A	47
Notes on Circular Churches. By the Rev. J. L. Petit, F.S.A	102
Account of the Bible published by Coverdale in 1535, and of a Copy in the	
Cathedral Library at Gloucester. By the Rev. James Lee Warner, M.A.	116
Notice of an Example of Domestic Architecture at Colerne, Wilts. By EDWARD	
W. Godwin	125
On a Reproduction of part of Domesday Book by the Photo-Zincographic	
Process. Ву Joseph Burtt, Assistant Keeper of Public Records	128
On the Foundation and Early Fasti of Peterborough. By the Rev. WILLIAM	
Stubbs	195
Extracts from the Black Book of Peterborough	209
Archæological Notes made during a Tour in Belgium, Western Germany and	
France. By J. O. Westwood, M.A., F.L.S. (To be continued)	212
Notice of a Round Church with semicircular Apse at Orphir, Orkney. By	
George Petrie, Corr. Memb. Soc. Ant. Scot	227
Notes on Churches in the Deaneries of Kerrier and Kenwith, Cornwall. By	
Edward W. Godwin	, 323
Ancient Geography of the Troad—The site and remains of Larisa. By Frank	
CALVERT, Hon. Corr. Memb. Arch. Inst	253
Notices of Collections of Glyptic Art exhibited by the Archæological Institute,	
June, 1861. (The Royal Collection, and the Besborough Gems.) By the	
Rev. C. W. King, M.A. (To be continued)	307
Traces of History and Ethnology in the Local names in Gloucestershire. By	
the Rev. John Earle, M.A. (To be continued)	342
Notice of the opening of a Tumulus, called Macs-how, at Stenness in Orkney.	
By George Petrie, Corr. Memb. Soc. Ant. Scot	353

PAGE
Original Documents:-
Deeds relating to Property in Yorkshire. Communicated by George
Wentworth, Esq., of Woolley Park 60
Inventories of valuable effects of King Henry VIII. in the Palace at
Westminster. Communicated by Joseph Burtt, Esq., Assistant
Keeper of Public Records
The Will of Henry Dene, Archbishop of Canterbury, A.D. 1502-3.
Communicated by the Rev. John Bathurst Deane, M.A., F.S.A 256
Grant in Confirmation of two Messuages and Land at Shareshill, Stafford-
shire, A.D. 1355. Communicated by William F. Vernon, Esq 359
Proceedings at Meetings of the Archæological Institute:-December, 1860,
to July, 1861
Abstract of Accounts, 1860, Audited May 2, 1861
Annual Meeting held at Peterborough
Notices of Archæological Publications:
Transactions of the Essex Archæological Society. Vol. I., 1858 93
Ten Years' Diggings in Celtic and Saxon grave-hills in the Counties of
Derby, Stafford, and York. By Thomas Bateman, F.S.A 410
Archæological Intelligence 100, 192, 306, 417

LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS.

	PAGE
Section of base-molding, Lichfield Cathedral	5
Historical Plan of Lichfield Cathedral To face	22
Plan of recently explored foundations, Lichfield Cathedral To face	23
Plan of British Village at Chysauster, Cornwall To face	39
Two Plans of Dwellings, ibid	40
Two Diagrams shewing construction of ditto	43
Royal Signet of the Eagle, used by Henry VI. (Two wood-cuts.)	49
Seal and Counterseal of William de Fortibus To face	56
Seal of Byland Abbey	63
Cinerary Urns found in Lincolnshire	71
Bone Die, &c., found in Leicestershire. (Three wood-cuts)	76
Ground-plan, Church at Altenfurt*	102
Plan, Circular Church with radiating recesses	103
Interior View, Nimeguen Church	106
Diagram, shewing design of a Circular Church	107
Interior View, Druggelte Church	108
Ground-plan, ditto	109
Circular Church at Fulda To face	109
Interior View and Plans, ditto. (Three wood-cuts.)	110
Interior View, ditto To face	110
Plan of the Crypt, Montmajour	111
Interior View, ditto	113
Exterior View of Druggelte Church	115
Fac-similes of the concluding lines, Coverdale's Bible. (Two wood-cuts)+	122
Details of a house at Colerne, Wilts. (Three wood-cuts) To face	162
Diminutive bronze celt	156
Bronze palstave found in Ireland	157
Bronze box found at Lincoln	159

^{*} For this and the thirteen following illustrations, the Institute is indebted to the kind liberality of the Rev. J. L. Petit.
† For these facsimiles the Institute is indebted to the kindness of the Rev. J. Lee Warner.

LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS.

	PAGE
Bronze spears, palstave, &c., found at Lincoln. (Six wood-cuts.) . To face	160
Bronze spear found in Devon. (Two wood-cuts.)	161
Stone moulds for bronze weapons. (Three wood-cuts.)	162
Bronze weapons, spiked mace-heads, &c. (Four wood-cuts)	163
Bronze celt and ring-brooch found in Ireland. (Two wood-cuts.)	164
Bronze ring-brooch, found in Ireland	165
Bronze bridle-bit, found in Ulster.*	165
Bronze celt, arrow, and spear. (Four wood-cuts.) To face	167
Portions of ancient tissues, found in France and Sicily.† Two wood-	
cuts.)	174
Inscribed stone, with Oghams, found at Fardel, Devon. (Two wood-	
cuts.) To face	176
Alphabet of Oghams	180
Sculptured head-stone with Oghams found in Bressay. (Two wood-cuts.) To face	181
Embroidered hawking-pouch	188
Embroidered lure	189
Brass Font at Brussels	216
Figure of a soldier on a brass font, Liege	217
View and details of the Girth House at Orphir, Orkney. (Three wood-cuts.)	226
Ground-plan, ditto	228
Interior of apse, ditto	229
Ground-plans of Churches in Cornwall.§ (Eleven wood-cuts.) To face	231
North View of Towednack Church To face	232
Details of chancel arch, tower, &c., ditto. (Three wood-cuts.)	233
Ground-plan, Church of St. Grada	234
Diagram of a window, ditto	235
Rude corbel, ditto	236
Ground-plans of Churches in Cornwall. (Four wood-cuts.)	237
Font and piscina, Ruan Minor. (Two wood-cuts.)	238
Details, Ruan Minor and Landewednack. (Four wood-cuts.)	239
Doorway, Landewednack	240
Plan of hagioscope, Cury	242
Font and details, ditto. (Three wood-cuts.)	243
Tower parapet, ditto	244
Section of arch, and a corbel, Manaccan. (Two wood-cuts.)	245
Details of the east window, &c., Mawgan. (Four wood-cuts.)	246
Escutcheons, and details, ditto. (Four wood cuts.)	247
Section of mouldings, Germoe. (Two wood-cuts)	249
Crucifix on the gable, details, &c., ditto. (Six wood-cuts.)	250
Fonts and corbel ditto. (Three wood-cuts.)	251

^{*} This illustration has been kindly presented by Evelyn P. Shirley, Esq., M.P.
† These illustrations have been kindly contributed by Mr. W. Burges.
‡ The use of these wood-cuts, which originally were given in the Archæologia Æliana, has been liberally granted by the Society of Antiquaries of Newcastle.

[§] A large proportion of the cost of the following illustrations, engraved from the drawings of Mr. E. W. Godwin, author of the memoir which they accompany, has been liberally defrayed by him.

	1	PAGE
Ivory Image of the Virgin with the Infant Saviour	To face	276
Collar of the Order of the Holy Ghost		282
Dagger, used by Charles I. when Prince of Wales. (Three wood-cuts.)		290
North view of Towednack Church, Cornwall	To face	325
Plan of details, Zennor Church, Cornwall		325
Font, and carved bench-end, ditto. (Two wood-cuts.)	10.1	326
Carving on a panel, Sancreed		327
Details, St. Keverne		328
Sections of arches, ditto		329
Piers, ditto. (Two wood-cuts.)		330
Device of the carver, St. Ruan Major		331
Plans of portions of the chancels, St. Ruan Major and Grade		332
Details, St. Ruan Major. (Two wood-cuts.)		334
Corbel, St. Paul's		335
Escutcheon, St. Ives		336
Font, Madron	0.15	337
Font, Ludgvan	4	337
Details, ditto. (Five wood-cuts.)		338
South-west View, St. Hilary	To face	339
Details, ditto. (Four wood-cuts.)		339
Ditto, ditto. (Five wood-cuts.)		340
Ground-plan and section, tumulus in Orkney. (Two wood-cuts.) .	To face	355
Transverse Section, ditto	To face	356
Figure of an animal, ditto		357
Soals Sir W de Shareshulle and John de Shareshulle. (Two wood-cut	a \	269

Four wood-cuts from the Transactions of the Essex Archaeological Society, Vol. I. Sepulchral Brass of Sir John Giffard, to face p. 98; two Views of the Monument of John de Vere, Earl of Oxford, to face pp. 99, 100. Three wood-cuts from Ten Years' Diggings in Grave-hills in the counties of Derby, Stafford, and York. By Thomas Bateman, F.S.A., pp. 413, 415.

ADDITIONS AND CORRECTIONS.

Page 39, line 12, for "occupied," read "occupy."
Page 42, line 13, for "Bollirt," read "Bolleit." A notice of the Vau or longitudinal passage here described, was read at the Spring Meeting of the Royal Institution of Cornwall in 1861, by Mr. R. Edmonds, and will appear with their Annual Report. It is also given as an Appendix to the Archæologia Cambrensis, No. 29, Vol. viii. Third Series. Chysauster, as the name has been given by Mr. Blight in this Journal, is written "Chysoyster," and the name is thus given by Mr. Edmonds.

Page 75. The following additions to the list of wooden efficies have been commu-

nicated. In the north transept, St. Mary's Overy, Southwark, there is a cross-legged effigy of oak, supposed to be the memorial of one of the Earls Warenne; it is figured by Gough, Sep. Mon. Add. to Pref. pt. iii., and described in Manning and Bray's Hist. Surrey, vol. iii., p. 573.—Door, Herefordshire: an effigy of oak in the south aisle, called Caducanus, Bishop of Bangor, who took the monastic habit at Dore Abbey, and died in 1225.—Weston, county Northampton, two cross-legged efficies of wood. The curious effigy at Much Marcle (noticed infra, p. 75) is supposed to be that of Helion, lord of the manor t. Edw. III. The costume is curious; a cap, surcoat buttoned in front down to the girdle, purse and dagger. It is said to have been brought from Castle

Frome. Gough, Sep. Mon. vol. ii., introd. p. 110; Gent. Mag. vol. c. pt. ii. p. 589.
Page 76. A die of ivory, supposed to be Saxon, was found with an urn in the Old
Kent Road, London, as recorded, Journal Brit. Arch. Ass. 1861, p. 334. It is not a perfect cube, measuring nine sixteenths by seven-sixteenths of an inch. The sides are marked with concentric circles, as on the die here figured, the 1 opposite 6, 2 opposite 5, 3 opposite 4, so that in every throw the venus, or lucky chance, and the cunicula, or

unlucky chance, together make seven.

Page 91. See some further observations on Flemish hand-bells, infra, p. 277.

Page 124. The following additions may be made to the list of copies of Coverdale's Bible. In the library of the Queen, Windsor Castle, a copy wanting the title and preliminary matter.—A copy in possession of Richard Prime, Esq., Walberton House,

Page 174. Much curious information relating to Mediæval Embroidery may be found in the Memoirs by the Rev. C. H. Hartshorne in this Journal, vol. i. p. 318; vol. iv.

Page 169. See a detailed account of the restoration of the lost seals of Grimsby,

Notes and Queries, Second Series, vol. xi. p. 46.

Page 179. See also the memoir by Mr. E. Smirke on the inscribed stone at Fardel, read at the Spring Meeting of the Royal Institution of Cornwall, 1861, and published with their Annual Report, and also in Archæologia Camb. appended to No. xxviii.; Third Series, vol. viii.; a memoir by Mr. Pettigrew, Journal Brit. Arch. Assoc., 1861, p. 293; and a memoir by the Rev. H. Longueville Jones, Arch. Camb. Third Series, vol. viii. p. 134.

Page 238, line 13, for "arch" read "aisle."

CORRECTIONS IN VOLUME XVII.

We are indebted to Mr. Frank Calvert for the notice of the following inaccuracies in his Memoirs on a Bronze Weight found at Abydos, and on the site of Colonæ, &c., in the last volume of this Journal:

Page 109, note. Dr. Smith's observations in regard to the supposed site of Abydos, and the village Aidos, are incorrect. No village exists at the spot in question, where there

is, however, a Turkish fort called Nagara Kaleksi.
Page 288, last line, for "Hidgia," read "Ilidgia."
Page 291, last line but one, for "Frankkein," read "Frankkeiu," and for "Erinkein." read "Erinkieu."

Page 295, last line but one, for "Dunbrek sora," read "Dumbrek sou."